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(FORMER) CHILDS RESTAURANT BUILDING, 2102 Boardwalk (aka 3052-3078 West 21st Street),
Brooklyn. Built 1923; Dennison & Hirons, architects.

Landmark Site: Borough of Brooklyn Tax Map Block 7071, Lot 130.

On September 17, 2002 the L andmarks Preservation Commission held a public hearing on the proposed designation as a
Landmark of the (Former) Childs Restaurant Building, and the proposed designation of the related Landmark Site (Item No.2).
The hearing had been duly advertised in accordance with the provisions of law. There were 28 speakers in support of
designation, including Coucilmember Dominec Recchia, and representatives of the Friends of Terra Cotta, the Municipal Art
Society, the Landmarks Conservancy, the Historic Districts Council, Place Matters, Coney Island USA, City Lore, the Vinegar
Hill Neighborhood Association, the Tile Heritage Foundation, and Brooklyn Pride. Also in favor of designation were curators
from the Cornelius Low House Museum in Middlesex County, New Jersey who had mounted an exhibition on the type of
architectural terracottaused on this building, and numerous artists, architects and residentsof New Y ork and specifically Coney
Island. Assemblywoman Adele Cohen submitted a statementin favor of designation. In addition, the Commission has received
letters from Brooklyn Borough President Marty Markowitz, the Friends of Cast Iron Architecture, and the Bay Ridge
Conservancy in support of designation. The Commission also received a letter from Community Board 13 which took no
position on the matter but requested that a public hearing be held in Brooklyn. Hundreds of letters and postcards from other
New Y orkers have also been received, both in favor and against designation of thisbuilding. Two owners of the building, Robert
and Carol Ricci, spoke in opposition to designation and presented lettersfrom two other owners, Dinaand Cara Ricci, who are
also opposed to designation. Subsequently, the owners wrote another letter to the Commission, rescinding their opposition to
designation.

Summary
Constructed in 1923, this resaurant building on the

oardwalk of Coney Island was designed by Dennison & Hirons
in a fanciful resort style combining elements of the Spanish
Colonial Revival with numerous maritime allusionsthat refer
to its seaside location. This spacious restaurant building
originally had a roof-top pergola and continuous arcades on
two facades to alow for extensive ocean views. Clad in
stucco, the building's arches, window openings and end piers
feature elaborate polychrome terra-cotta ornament in
whimsical nauticd motifs that include images of fish,
seashells, ships, and the ocean god Neptune. The terra cotta
was manufactured by the Atlantic Terra Cotta Company, from
models by Max Keck, and coloration by Duncan Smith. The
architectural firm of Dennison & Hirons used terra-cotta
ornament on many of its designs, but they were more
commonly conceived in aclassica or Art Deco style. For this
restaurant, the firm chose elements from the Spanish Col onial
Revival style, (relatively rare in New York City) which
included areas of flamboyant, three-dimensional
ornamentation and round-arched arcades, and made it
appropriate to the resort style befitting “the world's largest
playground”® — Coney Island. This building, with its large
size, showy ornamentation and location on the Boardwalk, is
arare reminder of the diversionsthat awaited the huge crowds
who thronged to Coney Island after the completion of the
subway routes to the area.

Childs Restaurant, which grew to be one of the largest restaurant chainsin the country, was founded in 1889 by
brothers William and Samuel Childs. Originally intendedto provide abasic, clean environment for wholesome food at
reasonable prices, the company eventually varied its restaurant designs and menusto reflect the unique location of each
outlet.




DESCRIPTION AND ANALYSIS

Childs Restaurant

The restaurant as a unique place to take a meal
began to gain popularity in this country after the Civil
War.? Although travelers had always been able to
obtain food at inns and taverns, and later at hotel
dining rooms, those living at home generally ate at
home. Eating somewhere el se was a new idea, related
to a modern urban and industrial lifestyle. In 1871,
The New York Times observed, “It is an undeniable
fact that the inhabitants of the large citiesin America
are every year drawn more and more from the great
homelife of their ancestors... [R]estaurants and
boarding houses are fast multiplying...”® By the
1830s, membersof the Del-Monico family established
several Manhattan localesto supply New Y ork's elite
with replicas of "Parisian" cuisne. At the sametime,
soup kitchens and one-cent coffee stands began to
provide food for the destitute, while immigrants
started cafes and beer gardensto recreate a taste of the
old country for their fellow emigres. After the Civil
War, other restaurants, including sal oons, coffee shops
and oyster bars began to cater to the working class,
with low-priced fare that was available during
extended hours, not just at set mealtimes. With the
invention of the soda drink in 1839 (by Eugene
Roussel in Philadel phia) composed of carbonated soda
water mixed with a flavored syrup, soda fountains
became very popular in small and large towns alike.*
Many stores, particularly drug stores, were quick to
add this appealing feature to their offerings. By the
1880s, they took the next step, adding light food,
especially sandwiches, to the sodas and desserts
already served there.

The ChildsRestaurant chain, begunin 1889, came
out of this lunch-counter tradition. Samuel and
William Childs, two brothers originally from New
Jersey, learned the restaurant business by working for
A.W. Dennett, owner of several restaurants in New
York, Philadelphia and Boston.> With $1,600 and
some second-hand furniture, the brothers opened their
first storeon Cortlandt Streetin Manhattan. It wasso
successful that they were able to open a second one
several monthslater. They borrowed Dennett'sidea of
placing a chef in the window, preparing flapjacks, as
away to advertise their business. They also started to
furnish their restaurants with white-tiled walls and
floors, white marbl e table-tops, and waitressesdressed
in starched white uniforms, to convey cleanliness. The
hard surfaces tended to discourage patrons from
lingering on the premises, alowing for quicker
turnover and more business. After ten yearsthey had
ten profitable restaurants and by 1925, the company

(whichwasincorporated in 1902) owned and operated
107 restaurants in 33 cities in the United States and
Canada.®

The Childs chain was responsible for severa
restaurantinnovations, including aself-serve cafeteria.
In 1898, at 130 Broadway, they piled alunch counter
high with sandwichesand pastry and trayson which to
place them.” Cafeteria service proved to be very
popular and was emulated at numerous other
restaurants around the country. In 1927, dueto health
concerns by William Childs, the Childs restaurants
served only vegetarian food and were known as the
Childs Unique Dairy Lunch. After an severe drop in
business attributed to the meatless policy, it was
reversed. Samuel Childs had died in 1925, and
William Childs was removed from governance of the
company in 1928 by irate stockholders?®

The company and the restaurantsthemselveswent
through severd changes through the years. After
Prohibition was lifted in 1933, liquor and wine were
served in some Childs outlets.’ In 1939, the company
received the contract to provide food service at the
New Y ork World'sFair, where it sold over 16 million
hot dogs! Althoughthe organization sufferedfinancial
problemsat different times, it continued to operate for
many years. In 1950, the Childs Company bought
Louis Sherry, the ice cream makers, and was, in turn,
purchased by Lucky Stores shortly afterwards.’® At
that time, the company owned restaurants in 14
American cities and three in Canada. In 1961, the
chain was acquired by the Reise Brothersand in 1966,
they opened the 90th ChildsRestaurant on 52nd Street
and Third Avenue in New York."*

Most of the early Childs Restaurants were set in
narrow storefronts designed in an “austerely-elegant”
style, with white tile, mirrors, bentwood furniture and
exposed ceiling fans,™ to complement and also to
represent the simplicity and purity of the food. Inthe
1920s however, other desgns began to be used, each
suited to the individual placement of the stores. One
example was the William Van Alen design for a
Childs restaurant on Fifth Avenue which, in abow to
the more refined character of that section of town, did
not display the usual signage and white decor, but
rather had interiors done in brown, in mission style,
with “dramatic use of large sheets of curved glassfor
corner windows.”*® By the late 1920s, some stores,
where it was appropriate to tie them to their particular
neighborhoods, used a digtinctive neon sign in a
Streamlined moderne style announcing the company's
name. At others, dance music was added, and the
lights and furnishingssoftened. The ChildsRestaurant



on the Boardwalk at Coney Island was one of the first
from this company to adapt the design to the
building’s specific location. Built just after the
completion of the subway which was to bring huge
crowds of New Yorkersto the area, the Coney Island
outlet of Childs, with its elaborate and colorful
ornament, was designed to fit this resort location. It
was so successful that the Childs Company built a
similar one on the Boardwalk in Atlantic City a few
years later. This later building was designed by
GeorgeB. Post and it again featured alow profile with
arcaded facades enlivened by colorful terra-cotta
ornament.™

Coney Idand®
Coney Island, originally separated from Brooklyn

by Coney Island Creek, was the site of the landing of
Henry Hudson's ship Half Moon in 1609. The name
Coney appears to derive from the Dutch word konijn,
or rabbits, which ran wild and were found in great
abundance on the island. The area first achieved
popularity as a rustic seaside resort after the
construction, in 1824, of ashell road from Gravesend,
Brooklyn and the adjacent Coney Island House Hotel,
on thewestern part of the island. Other establishments
followed, but thereal growth of the resort came about
after the Civil War when five railroads were
constructed connecting the idand with the rest of
Brooklyn. Beginning in the 1870s and 80s many
innovationsincreased the popul arity of Coney Idand,
including mechanical amusements such as carousels
and roller coasters, hot dogs, and mixed public
bathing. On the western end of the island were
gambling dens, housesof prostitution, and racetracks,
which thrived until anti-gambling legidation was
passed in New York in 1909. Wealthy clientele were
lured to the elegant resorts and hotels on Coney’s
eastern end, in Manhattan Beach and Brighton Beach,
with public bathing and numerous other amusements
located between them.

The Ferris Wheel, introduced at the World's
Columbian Exposition in Chicago in 1893, was
brought here after that fair closed. In order to attract
families and limit alcohol consumption, George C.
Tilyou created Steeplechase Park in 1897, grouping a
number of mechanical rides, including the famous
Steeplechase Race, behind a fence and charging an
admission fee. It was so successful that Luna Park
(1903) and Dreamland (1904) soon followed, with
more rides, entertainments, and a fantasy world of
exotic architecture, bright lights, and unusual sights.
Nearby, along Surf Avenue and the Bowery, there
were numerous small stands for rides, shooting
galleries, arcades, and saloons, as well as low-priced

restaurants to feed the hungry crowds. By 1900,
Sunday crowds reached more than 500,000 and lines
for the various amusements often lasted well into the
night. The subwaysreached the areain 1920, bringing
New Y orkersfrom all partsof the city to the beachfor
only five cents. After this, approximately one million
visitors came to Coney Island each summer day.
Something had to be doneto alleviate congestion and
to allow for better fire-fighting access to battle the
huge conflagrationswhich periodically decimated the
area. A boardwalk was constructed alongthebeachin
1923, stretching four miles from Brighton Beach to
Sea Gate and a short time later Surf Avenue and the
Bowery were widened,” destroying many smaller
buildings in the process.

Childs Restaurant, having already established its
reputation in other parts of New Y ork, was known as
a place one could buy a reasonable meal for a fair
amount of money. The company opened a small
restaurant at Surf Avenue and 12" Streetin 1917. The
destruction of this store in 1923 (due to street
widening), andthearea’ sgrowing popularity ledto the
opening of their largest and most decorative outlet, at
the Boardwalk and 21% Street, a building which added
“refinement in the bizarre surroundings of Coney
Island.”*” This new building was designed by the
architectural firm of Dennison & Hirons.

Dennison & Hirons™®

Ethan Allen Dennison (1881-1954)
Frederic Charles Hirons (1883-1942)

Ethan Allen Dennison, born in New Jersey,
studied architecture a the Godfrey Architectural
Preparatory School and the Ecole des Beaux Artsin
Paris. He began his career in the office of Trowbridge
& Livingston in New York in 1905, joining with
Frederic Hironsto form the partnership of Dennison &
Hirons in 1910. Their firm continued until 1929,
including the one year (1913) during which they were
joined by Percy W. Darbyshire, creating the firm of
Dennison, Hirons & Darbyshire. Dennison won the
Medal of Honor of the Society of Diploma A rchitects
of France and was a member of the Beaux Arts
Society of New Y ork, aswell asthe A merican Society
of the French Legion of Honor. After the dissolution
of thefirm of Dennison & Hirons, Dennison continued
to practice architecture in New York as the head of
Ethan Allen Dennison & Associates. Much of hislater
work wasin Connecticut, where he lived, and in 1940
he moved his firm to that state.

Frederic Charles Hirons was born in England but
moved as achild to Massachusettswith his family. He



worked as a draftsman in the Boston office of Herbert
Hale from 1898 until 1901 when he began to study
architecture at the Massachusetts Institute of
Technology. In 1904, he won the Rotch traveling
scholarship, and went to Paristo study at the Ecoledes
Beaux Arts. Hewon the ParisPrizein 1906, enabling
him to continue his studies and travel in Europe
through 1909. Hirons was always interested in
drawing and the education of young students. He led
his own atelier for several years after his return from
Europe, taught architecture at Columbia University,
was a founder of the Beaux Arts Institute of Design,
and served as president of the Beaux Arts Society of
Architects. He was named a Chevalier of the French
Legion of Honor in recognition of his services for
architectural education. After the dissolution of the
firm of Dennison & Hironsin 1929, Hirons formed a
partnership with FW. Mellor from Philadelphia for
two years, and then practiced under his own name
until 1940. Hironswon the competition for the design
of the Beaux-Arts Institute of Design in New York
(1928, adesignated New Y ork City Landmark) aswell
as several courthouses and war memorials.

Early works of the firm of Dennison & Hirons
include many neo-Classical style bank buildings in
various cities along the east coast. Later in their
partnership, Dennison & Hirons designed numerous
large and small bank buildings in the Art Deco style,
often collaborating with architectural sculptor Rene
Chambellan for decorative terra-cotta panels. They
created designs for the State Bank and Trust
Company of New York at Eighth Avenue and 43
Street, banks in Albany, New York, and Hartford,
Connecticut, aswell asthe (Former) Suffolk Title and
Guarantee Company Building (1929, a designhated
New Y ork City Landmark). Thedecorativeterracotta
used in many of these buildings was created by the
Atlantic Terra Cotta Company which featured a
special issue of their magazine devoted to the work of
this architectural firm.** This article included an
explanation of Dennison & Hirons' method for
producing the colored terra-cotta panels used on their
buildings. One-quarter scale modelswere created and
painted according to their designs. These were then
mounted on the building at their exact exposures, so
that the colors could be adjusted according to the
differing light conditions. After these models were
finalized, the Polychrome Department of the Atlantic
Terra Cotta Company would create glazes to achieve
the desired shades. In this way Dennison & Hirons
were able to produce colorful ornament which has
remained visually sunning for many years. For this
Childs Restaurant, the architects again worked with
the Atlantic Terra Cotta Company, including mode

maker Maxfield Keck (1880-1943)® and colorist
Duncan Smith.

Childs Restaurant, Coney Idand

Architects Dennison & Hirons usually designed
their buildings in either a restrained classical or Art
Deco style. At Coney Island, however, they created a
building in a style that was quite different from their
other work, but appropriate for this setting. The
Childs Restaurant on the Boardwalk was designed in
a resort style to go along with the existing “unique
fairyland environments for dreamers.”? In an area
filled with an eye-popping array of shapes, colors and
lights, a building had to be unusual to attract
customers. The amusement parks set the tone, with
huge plaster figures, large structures with unexpected
shapes, and thousands of twinkling lights beckoning
patrons. Other businesses sought to create their own
sense of uniqueness, adding towersand turrets, colors,
and roof gardens. On the Childs Restaurant building,
the colorful terra-cotta ornament in unique maritime
motifs, aswell asitslarge size and fine design hel ped
it stand out from the many flimsy shacks nearby which
accommodated the area’s various entertainments. A
contemporary magazine caled this building “One of
the most encouraging tendencies manifested of late
yearsinbuilding circlesto recognize good architecture
asadistinct asset strengthening to the prestige of their
business and increasing the volume of their
patronage.” %

The Childs Restaurant building isfaced with plain
stucco, which serves as a background for exuberant
bursts of ornament located at specific points on the
facade. On the rounded window openings high on the
end piers, there is so much ornament that it has been
called “Churrigueresque,” linking it to the Spanish
Baroque period in which exaggerated ornamentin the
form of elaborate curving and twisted forms, spiral
volutes, and florid patterns adorned buildings. This
style, with its profuse and lively ornamentation , was
not widely used in this country, but it came to be
associated with buildings designed for entertainment
or leisure activities such as movie palaces.”®

Dennison & Hirons were well-versed in classical
design principles, and they used this sysem as a base
for the Childs building, framing windows and doors
with moldings and swags, crowning end piers with
urns, and decorating arch spandrelswith rondels. The
differenceisthat within thisframework, the ornament
is composed of an agglomeration of seashells,
wriggling fish in high-spirited poses, grimacing
gargoyle heads, sailing shipsandthe seagod Neptune,
many draped with dripping seaweed. Originally, large
arched openings along the Boardwalk and the West




21% Street facade framed huge windows that enabled
restaurant patronsto enjoy views of the ocean and the
passing crowds. These arches were supported by
multi-colored marble columns topped with “lonic”
capitals composed of fish and seashells rendered in
terra cotta. Terra-cotta moldings, also with curving
fish and cockle shells, border the arches where
traditional egg and dart moldings would have been.
Contemporary critics lauded thistreatment of a

confident and free departure into details of
ornament that are quite as beautiful,
intriguing, and altogether satisfying in their
relations, as the purely traditional elements
which have been discarded for their use.*

The colors of the terra cotta applied to this
building were quite striking and unusual. Working
closely with the terra cotta artists of the Atlantic Terra
Cotta Company, the designers were able to produce
finely rendered terra cottaornament in bright, original
colorswhich were eye-catching at thetimeand remain
so today. According to the same article,

The scheme of coloration in the detail
involved the interflowing of different colors
and glazes to produce naturalistic effectsin
such motives as the dripping seaweed of the
large oval windows on the flanking towers,
thevarying color s of other forms of under-sea
life and contrasting textures of wet and dry
suggestion, often upon the same piece and
requiring not only themost intelligent artistry
in the necessary hand application but the
nicest manipulation of chemical formula in
the problems of glazing and firing. Bright
and mat surface effects intermingle in the
relief upon a ground surface of somewhat
gritty texture, thevarying tintsextending from
softly toned white to delicate shades of blue,
yellow, green and tawny buff...°

Set low against the Boardwalk, the Childs
Restaurant building appearsto have one doubl e-height
story. Originaly, it wastopped by a roof garden with
apergolaabovethemain restaurant. Indicationsof this
areevidenttoday in thebrack eted postsencrusted with
terra-cotta fish and shells, which project above the
main story. The Boardwalk is raised above street
level, however, and the building has an additional
story below the boardwalk level. A large building
which could accommodate many patrons, the Childs
Restaurant was an attractive and popular spot for the
crowds of people using the many public baths and
beaches nearby, such as the Washington Baths next
door to the east and Steeplechase Park, two blocks
away between 16" and 19" Streets.

Subsequent History

The Childs Company maintained a restaurant at
this location until the early 1950s, as Coney Island
reached its heyday and declined. In 1932, therewasa
huge blaze which devastated many blocks of Coney
Island’s amusements. The Childs Restaurant, unlike
most flimsy resort buildings, was constructed of
masonry, and survived the fire and even helped keep
it from spreading eastward.? With the disinvestment
in Coney Idand by New Y ork City during the 1940s
and 50s, most of the area’s businesses closed, as did
finally, thisChilds Restaurant. In the 1950s the vacant
building was purchased by the Ricci family and used
as a candy manufacturing facility, which continues
there today.

Description

The former Childs Restaurant building isalarge,
rectangular structure that faces the Boardwalk at the
corner of West 21% Street. There is a plain, modern
building adjacent to its rear facade and its utilitarian
western facade overlooks avacant lot and is faced by
plain brick, with no window or door openings. The
two main elevations are covered with rough textured
stucco, painted in yellow tones.

Across most of the main facade are five large
archways which have been enclosed across their top
with stucco and on the lower portion by roll-down
gates. Plain, round cement columns with terra-cotta
capitals separate each arch. Non-historic murals of
Coney Island scenesarelocated in the upper portion of
four of the arches. Each arch is embellished with
decorative terra cotta along the front edge and inside
thereveals. Theterracottaconsists of repeating, blue
and green images of various fish and seashells. Four
rondelles are located in the spandrels of these arches,
eachwith maritimemotifsin colorful terracotta. There
is another bay located to each side of the centrd
arcade. The bay on the west hasarectangular window
opening (which has been closed). It is surrounded by
a complex terra-cotta enframement and topped by a
broad urn surmounted by aflame. Thedesignsinclude
arching fish, garlands created of avariety of seashells,
and a grotesque head, and the entire ensemble is
draped with seaweed. The easternmost bay hasaplain
squared opening which has been blocked in and is
unadorned. The two outside bays extend up to form
broad piers at each corner. There are round openings
covered by historic metal grating and surrounded by
ornate terra cotta at the second story level in these
piers. Each of these piers rise up to form a small
parapet that istopped by an urn. Five shorter piersrise
between each bay of the front. Each hasa cap formed
of terra-cotta fish designs. Originally there was a
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railing between these piers which formed the edge of
aroof garden.

Along the West 21% Street side, the building is
three stories high. It extends along 21% Street for 14
bays, including end bays which have blocked-in
rectangular openings and rise higher at the roof level
to form piers for the original roof garden. The front
pier ismarked by around window opening covered by
agrate and surrounded by ornate terra cotta, ason the
front of the building. Between the two end bays, each
of 12 bays is marked by a double-height round arch
that has been blocked in. A ground-story level is
below these arches since the ground slopes down
considerably behind the Boardwalk. There are two
large vehicle entrances at the ground-gtory level, as
well as three pedestrian doors, al covered by roll-
down gates. In the arches above, two stories are
indicated by two levels of small, metal-framed arched

windows within each large arch. Between the large
archesaredecorative roundelsof brightly-coloredterra
cotta in designs which reflect the ocean location,
including Neptune with histrident, sailing ships, and
cavorting fish. All are surrounded with sprightly fish
and shell motifs. Three non-historic downspouts have
been located beneath three of these medallions, with
the water emerging in the middle of them. The top of
thisfacadeendsin aparapet topped by plain terracotta
blocks.

Report researched and written by
Virginia Kurshan
Research Department
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FINDINGS AND DESIGNATION

On the basis of acareful consideration of the history, the architecture, and other features of
thisbuilding, the Landmarks Preservation Commission findsthat the (Former) Childs Restaurant has
aspecial character, and special historicd and aestheticinterest and value as part of the devel oppment,
heritage, and cultural characteristics of New Y ork City.

The Commission further finds that, among its important qualities, the (Former) Childs
Restaurant building was constructed in 1923 on the then-new Boardwalk at Coney Island; that the
Childs Restaurant chain for which it was built, provided wholesomefood at reasonable pricesin a
festive atmosphere for the thousands of beach-goers at Coney Island; that the Childs Restaurant
chainwas begun in 1889 by brothers Samuel and William Childsto furnish a clean environment for
low-cost meals and that by 1925, the chain owned morethat one hundred restaurantsin 33 citiesin
the United States and Canada; that the building was designed by architects Dennison & Hirons, who
often used terra cotta as a major element of their building designs; that the design for the Childs
Restaurant, including elaborate “ Churrigueresque” details executed with marine motifsin a resort
style with Spanish Revival influence, was unusual for New Y ork, but appropriate to itslocation at
the great playground of Coney Idand; that the designers used flamboyant three dimensional
ornament to mark window openings, arches, and end piers, in nautical motifs such as seashells, fish
and the seagod Neptuneto link the building to itslocation by the sea; that these decorative elements
werefinely executedin terracottaby the Atlantic TerraCotta Company, using modd sby Max Keck,
and coloration by Duncan Smith; that the building is a rare survivor of Coney Island’s heyday as
New York’s premier seaside playground and continues to provide a unique presence on the
Boardwalk and near theattractions of the Parachute Jump and the Brooklyn Cyclones baseball field.

Accordingly, pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 74, Section 3020 of the Charter of the
City of New Y ork and Chapter 3 of Title 25 of the Administrative Code of the City of New Y ork,
the Landmarks Preservation Commission designates asa L andmark the (Former) Childs Restaurant
Building, 2102 Boardwalk, aka 3052-3078 West 21st Street, Brooklyn, and designates Borough of
Brooklyn Tax Map Block 7071, Lot 130 asits Landmark Site.



(Former) Childs Restaurant Building
2102 Boardwalk (aka 3052-3078 West 21 Street), Brooklyn
Photo: Carl Forster



(Former) Childs Restaurant Building
2102 Boardwalk (aka 3052-3078 West 21 Street), Brooklyn
West 21° Street Facade
Photo: Carl Forster




Western facade
(Former) Childs Restaurant Building

Details, eastern facade

Photos: Carl Forster



(Former) Childs Restaurant Building
Terra cotta medallions
Photos: Carl Forster




(Former) Childs Restaurant Building
Terra cotta details
Photos: Carl Forster



(Former) Childs Restaurant Building
Photos: Carl Forster
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(Former) Childs Restaurant Building
2102 Boardwalk (aka 3052-3078 West 21 Street), Brooklyn
Landmark Site: Borough of Brooklyn Tax Map Block 7071, Lot 130
Source: Building & Property Atlas (2002), Vol. 18, Plate 71
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(Former) Childs Restaurant Building
2102 Boardwalk (aka 3052-3078 West 21 Street), Brooklyn
Landmark Site: Borough of Brooklyn Tax Map Block 7071, Lot 130
Source: Building & Property Atlas (2002), Vol. 18, Plate 71



